Invitation to Tender

Welsh Gambling Education Hub

Contact: Zoe Blood

Zoe.Blood@gambleaware.org

Date of issue: 8 September 2021

Contents

1.	Introduction and specification for this competition	3
	Overview	3
	About GambleAware	3
	Specification of requirement for this competition	4
	Budget /Grant length	. 10
2.	Instructions to Bidders	. 11
	Response Format	. 11
	Bidder Presentations	. 11
	Submission of Response	. 11
	Clarification	. 11
	Timeline for this Competition	. 11
3.	Competition Selection process and Bidders Questions	. 13
	Bidder Selection Criteria	. 13
	Form of Response	. 13
	The Scoring Methodology	. 13
	Summary of Evaluation Scoring	. 14
	Pass or Fail	. 14
	Sections for Bidder Response	. 15
4.	Terms and Conditions	. 18

1. Introduction and specification for this competition

Overview

GambleAware ('the charity') are looking to expand the <u>Gambling Education Hub service</u> currently delivered by <u>Fast Forward</u> in Scotland, to England and Wales.

The Scottish Gambling Education Hub (SGEH) has been operating for over seven years, helping to prevent and reduce gambling harms among young people through early intervention and prevention. The SGEH provides training to a range of professionals and practitioners within the youth sector, convenes a Scottish Gambling Education Network, responds to consultations such as the recent Gambling Act Review, among many other core activities and outputs.

Interim findings from the external evaluation of the SGEH have proven it to be an effective and impactful programme of work and one that is transferrable to both England and Wales. The activities and outputs outlined within the specification are based upon the current model being delivered within Scotland but have been adjusted based upon the interim evaluation findings, market gap analysis, and the different needs and contexts identified across the different countries and regions.

About GambleAware:

GambleAware is the leading commissioner of prevention and treatment services for gambling harms in Great Britain. It is an independent charity guided by a Board of trustees, the majority of whom work in the health sector.

In April 2021 GambleAware published a new five-year strategy which defined the charity's vision of a society where people are safe from gambling harms. This vision is based on a whole-system approach, which acknowledges the many other organisations, networks and individuals, including those who have lived experience of gambling harms, that already play a key role across the system, or have the potential to do so in the future.

To get to where GambleAware expects to be in five years, the charity must focus on delivering four commissioning objectives to be effective at helping to prevent gambling harms:

- Commissioning Objective 1: Increase awareness and understanding of gambling harms.
- Commissioning Objective 2: Increase access to services and reduce gambling harm inequalities.
- Commissioning Objective 3: Build capacity amongst healthcare professionals, social prescribers, debt
 advisers, faith leaders, community services and others so they are better equipped to respond to
 gambling harms.
- Commissioning Objective 4: Deliver effective leadership of the commissioning landscape to improve the coherence, accessibility, diversity, and effectiveness of the National Gambling Treatment Service.

GambleAware is able to develop this five-year organisational strategy due to new funding certainty following the commitment of the four largest gambling operators in Great Britain to provide £100 million to the charity until 2024. Despite this support, GambleAware continues to support a mandatory levy to ensure continued funding certainty for the future.

Specification of requirement for this competition

Background / Context

Evidence¹ shows that around 55,000 young people in Great Britain are classed as 'problem gamblers', and as of September 2020 'the risks related to online gambling including the accumulation of debt' are now included within the Relationships and Sex Education (RSE) and Health Education statutory guidance in the English PSHE curriculum². To reduce the risk of young people experiencing problems with gambling, education on what gambling is, what the risks are, how to avoid experiencing gambling harm and where to go to for support and advice is key. Previous work undertaken by the PSHE Association³ and others suggests that educating children and young people, and those around them, about gambling in the context of a range of risky behaviours, gives them the knowledge required to be able to make more informed decisions; and developing skills in relation to resilience is thought to be protective against harm. This helps to reduce the likelihood of young people experiencing gambling harms and equips them with information on the support available if they are experiencing harm due to their own, or someone else's, gambling.

Evidence has also shown that one-off sessions delivered directly to young people by external subject matter experts or providers don't have a lasting impact⁴. By embedding knowledge and skills amongst professionals, practitioners and parents/carers through training and awareness raising, a longer-term approach to education and prevention around gambling can be taken, which is likely to be more effective in preventing harm.

This requirement shall contribute to the achievement of the following Commissioning Objectives:

- Commissioning Objective 1: 'Increase awareness and understanding of gambling harms'
- Commissioning Objective 3: 'Build capacity amongst healthcare professionals, social prescribers, debt advisers, faith leaders, community services and others so they are better equipped to respond to gambling harms.'

GambleAware's full Organisational Strategy 2021-26 can be found here.

GambleAware plans to expand the <u>Gambling Education Hub</u> currently delivered by Fast Forward in Scotland, to England and Wales. The Scottish Gambling Education Hub has been operating for over seven years, helping to prevent and reduce gambling harms among young people through early intervention and prevention. The SGEN currently delivers <u>training</u> to individuals across five sectors in health, education and employability, has delivered peer-based theatre performances to schools, has established a <u>Scottish Gambling Education Network</u>, continues to develop and provide an online <u>Gambling Education Toolkit</u>, and supports youth groups through a <u>Gambling Education Youth Fund</u>; among other activities and outputs.

¹ Gambling Commission, Young People and Gambling Survey 2019: a research study among 11–16 year olds in Great Britain (October 2019): https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/Young-People-Gambling-Report-2019.pdf [accessed 6 April 2020]

² Department for Education, Relationships Education, Relationships and Sex Education (RSE) and Health Education: Statutory guidance for governing bodies, proprietors, head teachers, principals, senior leadership teams, teachers (September 2020): Relationships_Education_Relationships_Education_Relationships_Education_Relationships_Relationships_Education_RSE_and_Health_Education.pdf [accessed 21 July 2021]

³ https://www.pshe-association.org.uk/content/gambling

⁴ Keen, B., Blaszczynski, A., & Anjoul, F. (2017). Systematic review of empirically evaluated schoolbased gambling education programs. Journal of Gambling Studies, 33(1), 301-325. http://dx.doi.org/10.1007/s10899-016-9641-7

The challenges and opportunities for the Welsh Gambling Education Hub, which are based upon scoping and engagement work and the interim findings from the external process and impact evaluation of the SGEH, are set out below.

Challenge	Opportunity
Many existing providers: There are currently lots of individual providers in the gambling education and prevention space taking different approaches but working towards the same objectives.	The Welsh Gambling Education Hub should aim to bring all gambling education and prevention services in Wales together as a network to be promoted and communicated in a consistent way. This should also provide a forum for all organisations to work together towards shared objectives for a coherent system of prevention and education to be provided to the end beneficiaries.
Differences in Curriculum across GB: The Scottish Curriculum for Excellence differs to both the curriculums in England and in Wales. This means that the training programme and resources and tools will need to be adapted taking the relevant curriculum into consideration.	Whilst gambling isn't part of the Welsh PSE curriculum, there is gambling education and prevention activity being undertaken in Wales which demonstrates that the need for this is understood. The Curriculum for Wales emphasises the important of the Welsh language which should be considered for all outputs and training delivery.
Geographical landscape in Wales: The geography in Wales is vaster in comparison to Scotland, with limited public transport options between North and South Wales which may present practical limitations of service reach.	Although travel between the North and South of Wales isn't easily accessible via public transport, having a range of delivery modes rather than just face-to-face training sessions can help to ensure accessibility and effectiveness across the board.

Overview of current provision in Wales

Through market gap analysis and an engagement event held in July 2021, GambleAware have collated descriptions of the service provision already in existence in relation to gambling education and prevention across Wales.

• ARA (Recovery4all) <u>www.recovery4all.co.uk</u>

ARA is a treatment and support services working to reduce the harm caused by substance misuse and gambling addiction, and the consequent damage to individuals, their families and communities. ARA delivers the National Gambling Treatment Service in Wales, Gloucestershire, Bristol, Newport, Bath, Cornwall and surrounding areas, commissioned through GambleAware and GamCare. As part of this, Ara delivers a young people's education programme in collaboration with GamCare Big Deal across the same areas.

• BetKnowMore UK <u>www.betknowmoreuk.org</u>

Betknowmore UK is a small charity which provides services to support those affected by gambling related harms and educate the wider community on gambling related harms. Their work centres around providing support to those in treatment through the establishment of the first accredited peer support scheme for those in treatment for gambling disorder and through setting up local and now digital community-based services focusing on intervention and prevention. Their services are based on providing exceptional Peer Support and mentoring by those with lived experience.

• Better Change <u>better-change.org</u>

Better Change was founded in 2020 because as Founders, we had seen first-hand the devastation that gambling harm can cause and we wanted to make a difference. We are not only helping to support operators with their player protection strategies, but we are also working alongside numerous charitable organisations to help them deliver gambling awareness to vulnerable groups such as prison leavers, those recovering from substance abuse and more recently, secondary school age children.

Deal Me Out <u>www.dealmeout.org</u>

Deal Me Out is working to prevent gambling addiction through education, prevention and support by delivering education and training in the community on gambling and gaming harms and giving people the tools to help themselves or others. Since 2019 they have been delivering specialised and bespoke workshops for communities across Wales using both English and Welsh language.

• EPIC Risk Management <u>www.epicriskmanagement.com</u>

EPIC is established as the leading independent gambling harm-minimisation consultancy in the UK and Ireland, specialising in the identification and prevention of problematic gambling in high-risk sectors. EPIC is passionate about investing in young people; they deliver in-school awareness sessions which use impactful, real-life stories and interactive data capture to offer students advice surrounding safer gambling, encouraging pupils to foster informed ideas.

• GamCare <u>www.qamcare.org.uk</u>

GamCare operate the National Gambling Helpline and provide treatment for anyone who is harmed by gambling as part of the National Gambling Treatment Service. GamCare and YGAM are working together to deliver a £10 million, 4-year programme of education, training and support for young people across England, Wales and Northern Ireland. The target for GamCare by the end of March 2024 is to train 49,000 youth-facing professionals, and to provide awareness sessions to 64,000 young people under the age of 19 years old.

• Mind Matters <u>www.mindmatterstraining.co.uk</u>

Mind Matters is a private Ltd Co provider of mental health, suicide prevention, manager, and resilience training. This is likely to be added to with Autism training before the end of 2021. They work across all sectors and industries, both nationally and internationally. Their youth provision includes work with schools (including international/private schools), colleges, and HE institutions. Our main provision in this area is

Youth Mental Health First Aid (all 3 YMHFA products of MHFA England), and also the one day Higher Education MHFA.

• Redcard Gambling Support CIC <u>kellysredcardconsultancy.co.uk</u>

Redcard Gambling Support Project is an organisation dedicated to promoting gambling awareness, education, and prevention. They deliver educational gambling awareness workshops to a variety of organisations, including schools, rehab centres, youth projects, charities, and others. They have adopted the lived experience model, and all their facilitators have personal lived experience of gambling harm.

• The GREAT Network Wales, hosted at Swansea University swansea.ac.uk/great

The GREAT Network Wales, hosted at Swansea University, is a new network to bring together researchers, service providers, people with lived experience and policymakers to drive down gambling-related harm in Wales. GREAT provides evidence-based consultancy services for all sectors, produces high-quality, peer-reviewed impartial research, and serves as a clearinghouse for scientific and policy-based evidence regarding gambling and its related harms.

Young Gamers and Gamblers Education Trust (YGAM) <u>www.ygam.org</u>

YGAM is a national charity with a social purpose to inform, educate, safeguard and build digital resilience amongst young and vulnerable people, helping them to make informed decisions and understand the consequences around gambling and gaming. GamCare and YGAM are working together to deliver a £10 million, 4-year programme of education, training and support for young people across England, Wales and Northern Ireland. By 2024, YGAM and GamCare aim to ensure that every young person aged 11-19 has at least one session of gambling awareness education during their secondary/further education.

Overview of current provision in England and Scotland

Through an engagement event held in July 2021, GambleAware have collated descriptions of the service provision already in existence in relation to gambling education and prevention in England or Scotland to provide context of the current service provision across Great Britain, as this may inform the work this Invitation to Tender seeks to commission in Wales.

• Beacon Counselling Trust beaconcounsellingtrust.co.uk

Beacon Counselling Trust (BCT) is a North West of England wide counselling charity which employs fully qualified counsellors who have extensive experience working comprehensively in the area of mild to moderate mental health issues. BCT delivers the National Gambling Treatment Service across the North West, commissioned through GambleAware and GamCare, which will engage over 2,500 patients this year. As part of this, Beacon Counselling Trust also lead on the GamCare Big Deal Young People and Professionals Education Programme across the same area.

• Fast Forward www.fastforward.org.uk

Fast Forward provides health education, prevention, and early-intervention programmes across Scotland, from their base in Edinburgh. The Scottish Gambling Education Hub is a preventative and educational programme addressing youth gambling and gambling harms delivered by Fast Forward, in partnership with GambleAware. The mission of the Hub is to make it possible for every young person in Scotland to have access to gambling education and prevention opportunities.

NECA https://www.neca.co.uk/

NECA is a registered charity providing a range of Adult and Young people's Health and Wellbeing services. NECA also provide dedicated services as part of the wider National Gambling Treatment agenda across the North East and North Yorkshire regions. NECA also work in partnership with NHS and Gamcare in Leeds as part of Leeds community Gambling Hub. NECA also lead on the GamCare Big Deal Young People and Professionals Education Programme delivering services throughout the North East region.

Assumptions

- Training to professionals and practitioners that work with children, young people and families will be most effective being delivered by an organisation that is experienced in working in the youth sector.
- The evidence review and guidance developed by the PSHE Association⁵ and others as referenced in the Background/Context section is the evidence-based approach to gambling education and prevention in schools.
- Uptake of training will be greater where the training offer is accredited.

Specific requirement / specification

- The Welsh Gambling Education Hub offer will be based upon the existing Scottish Gambling Education
 Hub model, with learnings adopted from the external evaluation, engagement and regular project
 monitoring and reporting.
- People with lived experience of gambling harms must be involved in the development of the training content, delivery and supporting tools and resources.
- Equality, diversity and inclusion policy and procedures should be at the heart of the service design, provision and day to day operations and be accurately monitored and measured.
- The training should be accredited by an external awarding body, with accreditation achieved within the grant period. For example, the training delivered by the SGEH has been accredited by the Royal Society for Public Health.⁶
- Delivery of the training should focus on the following core youth sectors, unless emerging evidence during service design suggests this should be adapted:
 - Youth services (Youth work, employability, justice, mental health, sports, financial & housing advice)
 - Family services (Parents, carers, early years & family services)
 - Formal education (Schools, colleges & universities)
- Training should be available in a range of delivery modes to ensure accessibility and effectiveness.

⁵ https://www.pshe-association.org.uk/content/gambling

⁶ https://www.rsph.org.uk/our-services/accreditation.html

• The importance of using the Welsh language in training delivery, resources, theatre production, videos and webpages should considered across all activities and outputs.

- The training shall be available throughout Wales, ensuring that the Welsh context and regional differences are considered in training content, delivery and marketing.
- The Welsh Gambling Education Network should be established as a means to bring all gambling
 education and prevention services in Wales together to be promoted and communicated in a consistent
 way. This should also provide a forum for all organisations to work together towards shared objectives.
- Processes shall be in place to measure the impact of the training on the trained practitioners and young
 people who are the end beneficiaries of the training, including the allocation of resources to enable
 active engagement with the independent evaluation specialists commissioned by GambleAware.
- A sustainable approach is required, whereby the training is sustained beyond the grant period.

Expected Outcomes

The overall aim of the project is to reduce gambling harms among children and young people through early intervention and prevention.

The expected outcomes of the project are:

- Youth practitioners, teachers and youth organisations have increased awareness and understanding of the risks related to gambling, gambling harms, their impact and the support and services available to young people experiencing gambling harms.
- Youth practitioners and organisations have the skills and confidence to be able to educate young people about the risks related to gambling and gambling harms, to and respond to those affected by them.
- Youth practitioners and organisations have access to evidence-based resources, tools and networks to support their delivery in addressing gambling harms in young people.
- An increase in signposting young people and families to gambling harm support.
- Services embed youth gambling education in their work.
- Health, education and employability services work together and with gambling education policy.
- Young people can make more informed decisions about gambling.
- Young people are able to talk with peers and family about gambling harms and responses.

The expected impacts of the project are:

System impacts: to Improve the capabilities and capacity of practitioners' organisations that work with
young people in Wales so they provide gambling harm education and prevention support to young
people.

• Young People: Reduce harm (and associated public costs) caused by behaviours related to problems with gambling among young people through improved recognition and response to gambling risk.

Activities/Outputs

In order to meet the specification and deliver the intended outcomes, the provider will be required to deliver the following activities/outputs:

- Delivery of the Welsh Gambling Education Hub (WGEH), which includes:
 - Conferences and events to bring together the Welsh Gambling Education Network, a group for professionals and practitioners delivering youth gambling prevention education
 - Newsletters and other communication to promote the WGEH
 - Training and CPD provision for youth practitioners and professionals
 - School-based drama delivery to aid engagement with schools and teachers, with accompanying teacher training
 - Gambling Education Youth Funds awarded to groups of young people to create and run their very own gambling education & prevention initiative
 - Consultancy and support for organisations in developing gambling education programmes and signposting to support services
 - o Policy influencing activity, e.g. with The Welsh Government's Education and Public Services Group, and engagement in gambling stakeholder groups which may exist from time to time.
- Engagement with stakeholders and providers operating within the gambling prevention and early intervention sector in Wales to ensure there is no unnecessary duplication of effort or creation of competition.
- Development and implementation of pre- and post-training surveys, with processes to ensure that feedback is taken into account in the ongoing development of the training. These surveys should be developed in collaboration with GambleAware and the selected external evaluation provider.
- Active engagement and involvement with an external evaluation process, as directed by GambleAware. GambleAware is committed to proportionate evaluation across all commissioned projects and programmes. It is important projects and programmes are all monitored, and have evaluation frameworks in place, in order for there to be ongoing learning throughout the project and to contribute to the evidence base on what works in gambling education and prevention.

Budget/Grant length

Grant duration: Three years

Budget: Up to £300,000 (inc. VAT where applicable).

2. Instructions to Bidders

Response Format

We ask that bidders adhere to the word count that we have indicated within the question set, and to the order in which the information is requested to be set out. Please complete all sections and send the completed ITT response back to GambleAware as one submission in an electronic format.

Bidder Presentations

Following submission of the ITT selected bidders *may* be asked to make a presentation to GambleAware and answer questions on their response which may result in an amending of the scoring at that point before declaring a preferred bidder.

Submission of Response

All bidders who receive this ITT should *Acknowledge Receipt of ITT* indicating whether they will or will not respond along with *Acceptance of Standard Terms* on page 18. Please reply by email to zoe.blood@gambleaware.org by **5pm on 6 October 2021**.

Please title your e-mail response for this competition *Welsh Gambling Education Hub*. Please note in order to allow for equal treatment of all bidders, late responses cannot be accepted.

Clarification

Any clarification given or extra information supplied by GambleAware will also be distributed to other bidders involved in the bid. Clarification questions are permitted up to **midday on 13 October 2021** – all clarification questions to be submitted to: Zoe Blood, zoe.blood@gambleaware.org.

The ITT responses will be used as a basis for selecting a shortlist or progressing to final selection and award.

Timeline for this Competition

Bids must be submitted by midday on 2 November 2021.

Action	Date
ITT Issued to bidders	8 September 2021
Bidders acknowledge receipt of ITT	6 October 2021 (by 5pm)
Deadline for clarification questions	13 October 2021 (by midday)
Bidders submit ITT responses by	2 November 2021 (by midday)
Formal bidder evaluation completes by	26 November 2021
Preliminary presentation dates for shortlisted bidders	w/c 6 December 2021
Formal award and contract finalisation	10 December 2021

Acceptance of Standard Terms (see page 18)

Bidder Details

Organisation Name	
Contact Name	
Position	
Address	
Telephone Number	
E-mail address	

Please complete this section if this proposal is a **consortium arrangement**.

A.	Is your organisation proposing to undertake project activities itself? ('Yes' or 'No')	
В.	Is your organisation proposing to have the role of a lead body with the intention of using third parties to provide some project activities (i.e. sub-contracting)?	
	('Yes' or 'No')	
C.	Are you submitting this proposal as the lead body of a	
	consortium? ('Yes' or 'No')	
D.	If 'Yes' to 'C' above, please list all consortium	
	members. ('or 'n/a' if not applicable)	
E.	Have all consortium members listed in 'D' above	
	agreed to enter into the consortium? ('Yes' or 'No', or	
	'n/a' if not applicable)	

Acceptance of Terms

Please sign below in acknowledgement that:

"We acknowledge receipt of all documents listed in this ITT and submit a tender as requested. We accept that bidding and submitting a tender constitutes an acceptance of GambleAware fixed standard terms and conditions which are attached to this document."

Signed	
Print	
Position	
Organisation	
Date	

3. Competition Selection process and Bidders Questions

Bidder Selection Criteria

The winning bidder will be selected on the basis of the response, which is considered to provide the most practical, effective quality response, and is in accordance with the scoring and criteria set out in this Invitation to tender.

Form of Response

Bidders must submit a proposal containing answers to the sections set out in 'Sections for Bidder Response', and each section must adhere to the word counts specified.

The Scoring Methodology

Each section has been allocated a weighting (importance) of 1 - 4; this weighting will be multiplied by a 1 - 5 score. By way of example, a section allocated the maximum weighting of 4 and that has been answered comprehensively, scoring a maximum score of 5, will have scored a total of 4x5=20 for that particular section. The table below sets out how scores will be interpreted.

Score	Score Description
0	Does not answer the section and fails to meet the minimum requirements.
1	Adequate answer / meets minimum requirements but with serious reservations.
2	Acceptable standard with reservations that require review.
3	An acceptable standard with minor reservations about acceptability.
4	A very good standard with no reservations about acceptability and answers the section well.
5	A comprehensive answer to an excellent standard, with no reservations about acceptability and contains innovation.

Summary of Evaluation Scoring

Bidders to note: Quality of this service is uppermost in our mind and that is reflected in the number of questions that surround quality versus the one question on cost. The cost question is however still an essential part of the overall scoring and as such the overall cost submitted will be viewed within the context of the overall proposal and scores allocated accordingly.

Pass or Fail	GO/NO GO
Mandatory question Equality, Diversity, and	No score
Inclusion	
Section 1 Project team expertise and experience	Quality
Section 2 Organisation expertise and experience	Quality
Section 3 Project aims and objectives	Quality
Section 4 Delivery model & activities	Quality
Section 5 Project governance and quality assurance	Quality
Section 6 Monitoring	Quality
Section 7 Evaluation	Quality
Section 8 Lived Experience	Quality
Section 9 Theory of change	Quality
Section 10 Sustainability	Quality
Section 11 Challenges and opportunities	Quality
Section 12 Risk management	Quality
Section 13 Overall cost model	Cost

Pass or Fail

For this section <u>all answers have to be in the affirmative to proceed with your bid</u>. Any <u>NO</u> answer will result in exclusion from the competition.

	YES/NO
The impact of the activity and any direct delivery of services is in England, Scotland or Wales.	
GambleAware's preference is for proposals which are made on a not-for-profit basis. Please confirm if this is the case.	

Sections for Bidder Response

Mandatory Question: Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion. (No Score or Weighting /not scored)

Gamble Aware wishes to ensure that *equality, diversity and inclusion* are each at the heart of all our ways of working, both internally and through our commissioning activity.

Please set out how equality, diversity and inclusion considerations inform day to day operations within your organisation and how they will be accurately monitored, and measured, and attach any policies, procedures or details of activities to evidence this.

Your response to this section will not be scored but bids will only be considered if this section is completed and the bidder will need to confirm to GA that it will sign up to/ adhere to the obligations in respect of equality, diversity and inclusion contained in the draft contract supplied.

Section 1: Project team expertise and experience

Weighting 3, Word Limit: 100 words

Please describe the expertise of the project team in relation to this project.

Please provide CV's of the key members of the project team, or the relevant Person Specification(s) for any key roles not yet appointed to.

Section 2: Organisation expertise and experience

Weighting 3, Word limit: 400 words

Please describe any experience or expertise the organisation has of delivering similar projects within the youth sector.

Section 3: Project aims and objectives

Weighting 4

What is the overall aim of the project? (Word limit: 25 words)

eg. 'To increase awareness of gambling harms amongst the general public'

or 'To improve practice of social services staff when working with a person at risk of gambling harms'

What are the objectives of the project?

These objectives should all contribute to the overall aim of the project stated in 7.1 above. As a guide, we might expect between 2 and 6 project objectives.

Section 4: Delivery model and activities

Weighting 4, Word limit: 500 words

Please describe the delivery model and the activities that will be carried out in order to achieve the project aim and objectives. Please include a high-level delivery plan, including any key milestones

In addition to this written description, you may submit a delivery model diagram on a separate annexed document.

Section 5: Project governance quality assurance

Weighting 2, Word limit: 200 words

Please describe the project governance and any project quality assurance processes

- Who is responsible for the day-to-day management of the project and who has project oversight and decision-making authority? Please detail any project boards or steering groups.
- What processes are in place to ensure the project is delivered to the required level of quality?

Section 6: Monitoring

Weighting 3, Word limit: 200 words

Please detail the plans for monitoring performance and impact, including what will be measured, and the mechanisms for collecting this information.

Section 7: Evaluation

Weighting 3, Word limit: 200 words

What experience does the organisation have of evaluation of projects?

GambleAware is committed to building the 'what works' evidence to inform our treatment and prevention commissioning. GambleAware's evaluation protocol is available here. GambleAware will undertake or commission an independent evaluation of the project. Please describe:

- Any experience your organisation has in evaluation of projects such as this (internal or external evaluation);
- How you will be able to support any activity linked to evaluating this project.

Section 8: Lived Experience

Weighting 3, Word limit: 100 words

How are those with lived experience of gambling harms involved in the development of the project?

Section 9: Theory of Change

Weighting 4

Please provide on a separate document a Theory of Change which illustrates how the project activities will achieve the objectives and overall aim.

Section 10: Sustainability

Weighting 2, Word limit: 200 words

Please detail how sustainable impact of the proposal will be demonstrated.

For example, through a train the trainer approach.

Section 11: Challenges and opportunities

Weighting 4, Word limit: 300 words

Please detail how the three challenges and opportunities from 'Background/Context' section will be addressed.

- 1. Many existing providers
- 2. Differences in Curriculum across GB
- 3. Geographical landscape in Wales

Section 12: Risk management

Weighting 3

Please list the main risks to successful project delivery, and for each risk, the corresponding actions or processes in place to mitigate these risks. Please include a description of your processes for management of risk.

Section 13: Overall cost model

Weighting 4

What is the total budget for the project (excl. VAT)? Does VAT apply?

Please complete and submit the Project Proposal Annex A – Project Budget template alongside this Project Proposal document.

The Project Proposal Annex A – Project Budget template should be requested when Acknowledging Receipt of ITT indicating you will be submitting a response.

4. Standard Terms and Conditions

Note to bidders: The standard terms and conditions attached are a generic set that will largely remain the same for this grant (GambleAware do not negotiate its standard terms). There will however be specific aspects that will relate to the arrangements between GambleAware and the winning bidder and these will be discussed, and agreed or negotiated between both parties prior to inclusion in the contract document.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

BACKGROUND

- (A) The Funder has agreed to pay the Grant to the Recipient to carry out the Project.
- (B) This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions on which the Grant is made by the Funder to the Recipient.
- (C) These terms and conditions are intended to ensure that the Grant is used for the purpose for which it is awarded.

AGREED TERMS

1. **DEFINITIONS**

1.1 In this Agreement the following terms shall have the following meanings:

"Agreement": means this agreement which consists of Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms), this Part 2 (Standard Terms and Conditions) and the selected Schedules.

"Bribery Act": the Bribery Act 2010 and any subordinate legislation made under the Bribery Act from time to time together with any guidance or codes of practice issued by a relevant government department.

"Budget": the budget for the Project as set out in the Programme of Work.

"Commencement Date": the date on which the Project commences as set out in Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms).

"Confidential Information": means any and all information, data and material of any nature in whatever form (including, without limitation, in written, oral, visual or electronic form or on any magnetic or optical disk or memory and wherever located) however conveyed or presented belonging to a party, which the other party may receive or obtain in connection with this Agreement, and all other information of a confidential nature (including, without limitation, a party's Intellectual Property Rights, Know-How, non-public information relating to the business, financial or other affairs of a party, its operations, processes, plans or intention, trade secrets, market opportunities, business affairs and information of commercial value), information specifically designated as confidential, the fact that discussions and negotiations are taking place concerning the Project and the status of those discussions and negotiations, any information supplied by any third party in relation to which a duty of confidentiality is owed or arises, and any other information which should otherwise be reasonably regarded as possessing a quality of confidence, which may become known to the other party.

"Confidentiality Period": the period commencing from the date of this Agreement until the end of:

- (i) in relation to the Outcomes Summary, the Outcomes Summary Review Period and any delayed publication period where a Protection Notice has been issued in accordance with clause 8; and
- (ii) in relation to the Report and/ or Results, the Report Summary Review Period and any delayed publication period where a Protection Notice has been issued in accordance with Part 4 of Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles).

"Data Protection Law": means: (i) the Data Protection Act 2018 and the implementation into UK law of the General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679 adopted by the European Parliament on 14 April 2016; (ii) the Privacy and Electronic Communications (EC Directive) Regulations 2003 (as amended); and (iii) all other applicable laws and regulations relating to the processing of personal data (as defined in the Data Protection Law) and privacy, including statutory instruments.

"EDI Laws": means the Equality Act 2010, any statutory code issued under it (and any supplements to it) and associated guidance published by the Equality and Human Rights Commission and all other applicable UK legislation (including, but not limited to, the Human Rights Act 1998), statutory instruments and regulations in relation to equality, diversity and inclusion (whether in relation to race, sex, gender reassignment, age, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy, maternity or otherwise) and any similar or equivalent legislation in any other relevant jurisdiction;

"End Date": the date on which the Grant Period ends as specified in Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms);

"Governing Body": the governing body of the Recipient.

"Grant": the sum set out as the Grant amount in Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms) which shall be inclusive of any and all applicable taxes, if relevant.

"Grant Period": the period for which the Grant is awarded starting on the Commencement Date and ending on the End Date as set out in Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms).

"Intellectual Property Rights": all patents, copyrights and design rights (whether registered or not) and all applications for any of the foregoing and all rights of confidence and Know-How and any other intellectual rights however arising for their full term and any renewals and extensions.

"Know-How": information, data, know-how or experience whether patentable or not and including but not limited to any technical and commercial information relating to research, design, development, manufacture, use or sale.

"Outcomes Summary": has the meaning set out in clause 3.3.

"Outcomes Summary Delivery Date": the date on which the Outcomes Summary is delivered to the Funder.

"Outcomes Summary Review Period": has the meaning set out in clause 8.1.

"Payment Plan": means the payment plan set out in the Appendix of Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms).

"Permitted Party": means [those persons specified in Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms) and] such other persons to whom the Funder has agreed in writing that the Recipient may disclose the Outcomes Summary and/ or the Results.

"Policies": means those policies of GambleAware referred to at clause 4.7.2 and referred to in Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms) in each case as provided to the Recipient and as amended from time to time.

"Prohibited Act": means:

- (b) committing any offence:
 - (i) under the Bribery Act;
 - (ii) under legislation creating offences in respect of fraudulent acts;

(iii) at common law in respect of fraudulent acts in relation to this Agreement or any other contract with the Funder; and/or

(c) defrauding or attempting to defraud or conspiring to defraud the Funder.

"Programme of Work": means the programme of work in relation to the Project set out in the Appendix to Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms).

"Project": means the project as described in Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms).

"Project Timetable": the proposed project timetable set out in Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms) or any other project timetable which may be agreed by the parties in writing from time to time.

"Protection Notice": has the meaning set out, respectively, in each of clause 8.3 and Part 4 of Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles).

"Related Persons": any employees, agents, consultants, consultants, or any other person engaged or employed by the Recipient, and where the Recipient is an academic or teaching institute, the term Related Persons shall include all staff, faculty members, visiting lecturers, research associates and students.

"Report": has the meaning set out in Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles).

"Report Delivery Date": the date on which the Report is delivered to the Funder.

"Report Review Period": has the meaning set out in Part 5 of Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles).

"Results": the results and/or any data or information arising from the Project as further detailed at Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles).

- 1.2 The Schedules form part of this Agreement and shall have effect as if set out in full in the body of this Agreement. Any reference to this Agreement includes the Schedules.
- 1.3 Reference to any statute or order or regulation made thereunder include that statute, order or regulation as amended, modified, re-enacted or replaced from time to time.
- 1.4 Any words following the terms including, include, in particular or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words, description, definition, phrase or term preceding those terms.
- 1.5 This Agreement shall be binding on, and enure to the benefit of, the parties to this Agreement and their respective personal representatives, successors and permitted assigns, and references to any party shall include that party's personal representatives, successors and permitted assigns.

2. **PURPOSE OF GRANT**

2.1 The Recipient shall use the Grant only for the delivery of the Project and in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement. The Grant shall not be used for any other purpose without the prior written agreement of the Funder.

- 2.2 The parties agree that the Project shall be carried out in accordance with the Project Timetable.
- 2.3 If there are any inconsistencies between the terms contained in the Programme of Work and this Agreement the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.
- 2.4 The Recipient shall not make any changes to the Project without the Funder's prior written consent.
- 2.5 Unless the Funder provides its written consent, the Recipient agrees and accepts that it shall not apply for duplicate funding in respect of any part of the Project, including any related administration costs.

3. **PAYMENT OF GRANT**

- 3.1 Subject to clause 11.1, the Funder shall pay the Grant to the Recipient in accordance with the Payment Plan set out in the Appendix at Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms), subject to the necessary funds being available when payment falls due. The Recipient agrees and accepts that payments of the Grant can only be made to the extent that the Funder has available funds.
- 3.2 No Grant shall be paid unless and until the Funder is satisfied that such payment will be used for proper expenditure in the delivery of the Project.
- 3.3 Prior to payment of the final payment of the Grant, the Recipient shall provide the Funder with a copy of the final report of the outcome of the Project ("Outcomes Summary"). [The Outcomes Summary shall be reviewed by:
 - 3.3.1 the Funder;
 - 3.3.2 [the Responsible Gambling Strategy Board]; and
 - 3.3.3 the Funder shall procure a peer review of the Outcomes Summary,

to ensure that the Outcomes Summary satisfies such quality standards, skill, diligence and best practice expected in the Recipient's field of work. For the avoidance of doubt, neither the review by the Funder, the Responsible Gambling Strategy Board nor the peer review shall involve editorial control of the Outcomes Summary but shall be limited to the quality of the report, including ensuring that the Outcomes Summary satisfies evidentiary scrutiny and delivers on the purposes for which the Grant was awarded].

- 3.4 The Funder shall pay the Recipient the final payment of the Grant subject to:
 - 3.4.1 the Funder receiving confirmation from the Recipient to its reasonable satisfaction that the Project has been successfully and properly completed;

3.4.2 the Outcomes Summary being reviewed in accordance with clause 3.3 and the Funder being satisfied that the Outcomes Summary has been revised, where necessary and appropriate, to take account of the outcome of the review;

- 3.4.3 the Funder being satisfied that the Outcomes Summary has been produced in accordance with such quality standards, skill, diligence and best practice expected in the Recipient's field of work; and
- 3.4.4 the Outcomes Summary has been proof-read to a professional standard.
- 3.5 The amount of the Grant shall not be increased as a result of inflation and/or in the event of any overspend by the Recipient in its delivery of the Project.
- 3.6 The Recipient agrees that the Grant is not in exchange for any goods or services and is not subject to VAT or any other equivalent sales or goods tax.
- 3.7 The parties agree that the Grant is outside the scope of VAT, and therefore no VAT needs to be accounted for to HMRC.
- 3.8 However, in the event that HMRC takes the view that the Grant is within the scope of VAT, and VAT should have been collected and accounted for, then the parties agree that the Grant was made on a VAT inclusive basis. Therefore the Recipient shall be responsible for paying any VAT that may become due, to HMRC.
- 3.9 The Grant shall be paid into a ordinary business bank account in the name of the Recipient. All withdrawals from the bank account must be authorised by at least two individual representatives of the Recipient.
- 3.10 The Recipient shall not transfer any part of the Grant to bank accounts which are not ordinary business accounts within the clearing bank system, without the prior written consent of the Funder.
- 3.11 The Recipient shall promptly repay to the Funder any money incorrectly paid to it either as a result of an administrative error or otherwise. This includes (without limitation) situations where either an incorrect sum of money has been paid or where Grant monies have been paid in error before all conditions attaching to the Grant have been complied with by the Recipient.

4. **USE OF GRANT**

4.1 The Grant shall be used by the Recipient for the delivery of the Project in accordance with the Budget. For the avoidance of doubt, the amount of the Grant that the Recipient may spend on any item of expenditure shall not exceed the corresponding sum of money listed in the Budget without the prior written consent of the Funder.

4.2 Where the Recipient has obtained funding from a third party in relation to its delivery of the Project (including without limitation funding for associated administration and staffing costs), the amount of such funding shall be included in the Budget together with a clear description of what that funding shall be used for.

- 4.3 The Recipient shall not use the Grant to:
 - 4.3.1 make any payment to members of its Governing Body; or
 - 4.3.2 pay for any expenditure commitments of the Recipient entered into before the Commencement Date,

unless this has been approved in writing by the Funder.

- 4.4 The Recipient shall not spend any part of the Grant whether on the delivery of the Project or otherwise, after the end of the Grant Period.
- 4.5 Should any part of the Grant remain unspent at the end of the Grant Period, the Recipient shall ensure that any unspent monies are returned to the Funder within 10 (ten) days of the end of the Grant Period or, if agreed in writing by the Funder, shall be entitled to retain the unspent monies to use for charitable purposes as agreed between the parties in writing.
- Any liabilities arising at the end of the Project including any redundancy liabilities for staff employed by the Recipient to deliver the Project must be managed and paid for by the Recipient using the Grant or other resources of the Recipient. There will be no additional funding available from the Funder for this purpose.
- 4.7 The Recipient agrees that:
 - 4.7.1 It shall work with and cooperate with the Funder and other Project partners to ensure that the Project is successfully undertaken and the success of the Programme of Work can be achieved;
 - 4.7.2 It shall comply with the Policies in all material respects;
 - 4.7.3 it shall comply with the EDI Laws and all applicable principles of transparency, non-discrimination and equal treatment in connection with the procurement of any elements of the Project in respect of which funding is to be provided by the Funder and shall promptly provide to the Funder any information which the Funder may reasonably request in order to satisfy itself that the Recipient has done so; and
 - 4.7.4 all procurement of works, goods and services shall be based on value for money. In determining how this requirement should be met, the Recipient must take account of accountability and probity, and shall document the decision-making process.

5. **ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS**

5.1 The Grant shall be shown in the Recipient's accounts as a restricted fund and shall not be included under general funds.

- 5.2 The Recipient shall keep separate, accurate and up-to-date accounts and records of the receipt and expenditure of the Grant monies received by it.
- The Recipient shall keep all invoices, receipts, and accounts and any other relevant documents relating to the expenditure of the Grant for a period of at least six years following receipt of any Grant monies to which they relate. Subject to the Recipient's obligations of confidentiality to any third party, the Funder shall have the right to review, at the Funder's reasonable request, the Recipient's accounts and records that relate to the expenditure of the Grant and shall have the right to take copies of such accounts and records.
- On request by the Funder, the Recipient shall provide the Funder with a copy of its annual accounts within six months (or such lesser period as the Funder may reasonably require) of the end of the relevant financial year in respect of each year in which the Grant is paid.
- 5.5 The Recipient shall comply and facilitate the Funder's compliance with all statutory requirements as regards accounts, audit or examination of accounts, annual reports and annual returns applicable to itself and the Funder.

6. **MONITORING**

- The Recipient shall closely monitor the delivery and success of the Project throughout the Grant Period to ensure that the aims and objectives of the Project are being met and that this Agreement is being adhered to.
- The Recipient shall provide the Funder with a financial report and an operational report on its use of the Grant and delivery of the Project every quarter during the Grant Period and in such formats as the Funder may reasonably require. The Recipient shall provide the Funder with the financial report and the operational report within one month of the last day of the quarter to which it relates.
- 6.3 Where the Recipient has obtained funding from a third party for its delivery of part of the Project, the Recipient shall include the amount of such funding in its financial reports together with details of what that funding has been used for.
- The Recipient shall on the Funder's request provide the Funder with such further information, explanations and documents as the Funder may reasonably require in order for it to establish that the Grant has been used properly in accordance with this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the steps taken by the Recipient to comply with the EDI Laws.

The Recipient shall permit any person authorised by the Funder such reasonable access to its Related Persons, premises, facilities and records, for the purpose of discussing, monitoring and evaluating the Recipient's fulfilment of the conditions of this Agreement and shall, if so required, provide appropriate oral or written explanations from them.

The Recipient shall permit any person authorised by the Funder for the purpose to visit the Recipient once every quarter to monitor the delivery of the Project. Where, in its reasonable opinion, the Funder considers that additional visits are necessary to monitor the Project, it shall be entitled to authorise any person to make such visits on its behalf.

7. **ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF PUBLICITY**

- 7.1 In respect of all acknowledgements by the Recipient of the Grant or the Funder required or permitted under this Agreement (in particular, this clause 7), the Recipient shall:
 - (a) acknowledge the Funder as the source of the Grant as an independent registered charity:
 - (b) (where appropriate or as requested by the Funder) include the Funder's name and logo or such other name or logo as the Funder may stipulate;
 - (c) in using the relevant name and logo under (b) above, comply with the GambleAware Branding Protocol at Schedule 3 and any other GambleAware branding requirements/guidelines issued by the Funder from time to time.
- 7.2 The Recipient shall not publish any material referring to the Project or the Funder without the prior written agreement of the Funder. Subject to clause 8 (Publication) and clause 10 (Confidentiality), the Recipient shall acknowledge the support of the Funder in any materials that refer to the Project and in any written or spoken public presentations about the Project. Such acknowledgements (where appropriate or as requested by the Funder) shall include the Funder's name and logo (or any future name or logo adopted by the Funder) using the templates provided by the Funder from time to time.
- 7.3 The Recipient shall acknowledge the Grant in its annual report and accounts, including an acknowledgement of the Funder as the source of the Grant, where feasible.
- 7.4 It is agreed and acknowledged by the Recipient that, in order to ensure the maximum effectiveness and uptake of the relevant interventions offered as part of the **Project**, it is vital for the Project to be presented to the public in a unified and consistent way as a cohesive and comprehensive programme. Accordingly, the Project shall be undertaken and presented at all times in accordance with the GambleAware Branding Protocol set out at Schedule 3.
- 7.5 The Recipient agrees to participate in and co-operate with promotional activities relating to the Project that may be instigated and/or organised by the Funder.

- 7.6 The Funder may acknowledge the Recipient's involvement in the Project as appropriate without prior notice.
- 7.7 The Recipient shall comply with all reasonable requests from the Funder to facilitate visits, provide reports, statistics, photographs and case studies that will assist the Funder in its promotional and fundraising activities relating to the Project.
- 7.8 The Recipient shall not (and shall ensure that its Related Persons shall not) without the prior written consent of the Funder during the Confidentiality Period:
 - 7.8.1 disclose any data and information resulting from or arising from the Project to any journalists, newspapers, magazines, journals or any other type of press or media body; and
 - 7.8.2 issue any press release or announcement referring to the Project or concerning any data and information resulting from or arising from the Project.
- 7.9 The parties shall adhere to the media protocol for the handling of press and media enquiries in respect of the Project as set out at Schedule 2 (Media Protocol) and amended from time to time.
- 7.10 The Funder agrees to provide reasonable assistance to the Recipients to deal with all press/media enquires in respect of the Project at the Funder's discretion. Such assistance may include:
 - 7.10.1 providing the Recipient with access to the Funder's press office;
 - 7.10.2 providing the Recipient with approved wording to be inserted into a formal press release in response to press/media queries.

8. [PUBLICATION]

- The Recipient shall refrain, and shall ensure that its Related Persons shall refrain, from publishing any information relating to or contained in the Outcomes Summary prior to and for a period of [one (1)] month from the Outcomes Summary Delivery Date ("the Outcomes Summary Review Period").
- 8.2 At least 30 days prior to the end of the Outcomes Summary Review Period:
 - 8.2.1 the Recipient will discuss with the Funder its strategy for publication before it (or any of its Related Persons) publish any information related to the Outcomes Summary; and
 - 8.2.2 the Recipient will submit to the Funder, in writing, details of any proposed publication containing any information related to the Outcomes Summary that it or any Related Person intends to publish.

8.3 Within 30 days of receiving a notice from the Recipient pursuant to 8.28.2.2, the Funder may give a written notice to the Recipient ("Protection Notice") requiring that the Recipient to delay the proposed publication for a maximum of three (3) month(s) after receipt of the Protection Notice, if, in the Funder's reasonable opinion:

- 8.3.1 that delay is necessary in order to:
- (a) seek patent or other protection for any information related to the Outcomes Summary that is to be published; and/or
- (b) prevent the publication of any of the Funder's Confidential Information; and/or
- 8.3.2 the proposed publication will negatively affect, conflict with or prejudice this Agreement or the objectives of the Project.
- 8.4 Upon receiving a Protection Notice, the Recipient shall refrain (and procure that its Related Persons refrain) from making the proposed publication for the period requested in the Protection Notice.
- 8.5 For the avoidance of doubt, the Funder must give the Protection Notice within 30 days after the Funder receives written notice of the proposed publication from the Recipient. If the Recipient does not receive a Protection Notice within that period, it or the relevant Related Person may proceed with the proposed publication.]

9. **INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS**

9.1 The Funder and the Recipient agree that all rights, title and interest in or to any information, data, reports, documents, procedures, forecasts, technology, Know-How and any other Intellectual Property Rights whatsoever owned by either the Funder or the Recipient before the Commencement Date or developed by either party during the Grant Period, shall remain the property of that party.

[IPR options – to be deleted as appropriate:]

- 9.2 [Limited use of Funder's IPR by Recipient for term of the Agreement: Where the Funder has provided the Recipient with any of its Intellectual Property Rights for use in connection with the Project (including without limitation its name and logo), the Recipient shall, on termination of this Agreement, cease to use such Intellectual Property Rights immediately and shall either return or destroy such Intellectual Property Rights as requested by the Funder.]
- 9.3 [Ownership of IPR by Recipient and licence to Funder: The Recipient shall own all Intellectual Property Rights created pursuant to this Agreement and hereby grants to the Funder and any third party, a non-exclusive, perpetual, irrevocable, royalty free and worldwide licence to use [the Outcomes Summary (and if Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles) applies, the Report/ and Results) delete as applicable] for the public benefit].

OR

[Ownership of IPR by Funder and licence to Recipient: The Funder shall own all Intellectual Property Rights created pursuant to this Agreement and hereby grants to the Recipient, a non-exclusive, perpetual, irrevocable, royalty free and worldwide licence to use the Outcomes Summary (and if Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles) applies, the Report/ and Results) – delete as applicable] for its internal purposes].

9.5 The parties warrant that insofar as they are aware the use of any Intellectual Property Right granted under this Agreement does not infringe the right of any third party.

10. **CONFIDENTIALITY**

- Subject to clause 10.4, each party shall during the term of this Agreement and thereafter keep secret and confidential all Confidential Information of the other party disclosed to it as a result of the Agreement and shall not disclose the same to any person save:
 - 10.1.1 to the extent necessary to perform its obligations in accordance with the terms of this Agreement;
 - 10.1.2 as expressly authorised in writing by the other party; or
 - 10.1.3 to the extent required by law, by any governmental or other regulatory authority, or by a court or other authority of competent jurisdiction provided that, as far as it is legally permitted to do so, it gives the other party as much notice of the disclosure as possible.
- Subject to clause 10.4, the Recipient shall during the Confidentiality Period keep secret and confidential the Outcomes Summary (and if Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles) applies, the draft and/ or final versions of the Report and Results) and shall not disclose the same to any person save:
 - 10.2.1 to the extent necessary to perform its obligations in accordance with the terms of this Agreement;
 - 10.2.2 where such disclosure is to a Permitted Party; or
 - 10.2.3 as expressly authorised in writing by the other party; or
 - 10.2.4 to the extent required by law, by any governmental or other regulatory authority, or by a court or other authority of competent jurisdiction provided that, as far as it is legally permitted to do so, it gives the other party as much notice of the disclosure as possible.
- 10.3 For the avoidance of doubt, during the Confidentiality Period the Recipient may not disclose (except to a Permitted Party) the Outcomes Summary (and if Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles) applies, the draft and/ or final versions of the Report/ and Results) to any of its Related Persons unless such persons are actively working on the Project.

10.4 The obligation of confidentiality contained in this clause shall not apply or shall cease to apply to any Intellectual Property Rights, Know-How or other business, technical or commercial information which:

- 10.4.1 at the time of its disclosure by the disclosing party is already in the public domain or which subsequently enters the public domain other than by breach of the terms of this Agreement by the receiving party;
- 10.4.2 is already known to the receiving party as evidenced by written records at the time of its disclosure by the disclosing party and was not otherwise acquired by the receiving party from the disclosing party under any obligations of confidence; or
- 10.4.3 is at any time after the date of this Agreement acquired by the receiving party from a third party having the right to disclose the same to the receiving party without breach of the obligations owed by that party to the disclosing party.

11. DATA PROTECTION

- 11.1 The Recipient shall comply with its applicable obligations under Data Protection Law if processing personal data (as those terms are defined under Data Protection Law) when delivering the Project.
- Unless specifically agreed in writing between the parties, the Recipient shall not provide or disclose any personal data to the Funder in connection with the Report, Results or Outcome Summary. For the avoidance of doubt, the Recipient shall use all reasonable efforts to anonymise any personal data collected in connection with the Project in line with guidance on anonymisation produced by the Information Commissioner's Office before providing such data to the Funder.

12. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

The Recipient acknowledges that the Funder may be required to comply with the requirements of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 ("FOIA") and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 ("EIRs").

12.2 The Recipient shall:

- 12.2.1 provide all necessary assistance and cooperation as reasonably requested by the Funder to enable the Funder to comply with its obligations;
- 12.2.2 transfer to the Funder all requests for information relating to this Agreement that it receives as soon as practicable and in any event within 2 working days of receipt;
- 12.2.3 provide the Funder with a copy of all information belonging to the Funder requested in the request for information which is in its possession or control in the form that the Funder requires within 5 working days (or such other period as the Funder may reasonably specify) of the Funder's request for such information; and

12.2.4 not respond directly to a request for information unless authorised in writing to do so by the Funder.

12.3 The Recipient acknowledges that the Funder may be required under the FOIA and EIRs to disclose information without consulting or obtaining consent from the Recipient. The Funder shall be responsible for determining in its absolute discretion whether any information is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the FOIA and/or the EIRs.

13. WITHHOLDING, SUSPENDING AND REPAYMENT OF GRANT

- 13.1 The Funder's intention is that the Grant will be paid to the Recipient in full. However, without prejudice to the Funder's other rights and remedies, the Funder may in its absolute discretion withhold or suspend payment of the Grant and/or require repayment of all or part of the Grant if:
 - 13.1.1 the Funder's funding for the Project is withdrawn, terminated, reduced or becomes unavailable for any reason;
 - 13.1.2 the Recipient fails to obtain ethical approval for the Project prior to the commencement of the Project;
 - 13.1.3 the Recipient uses the Grant for purposes other than those for which they have been awarded;
 - 13.1.4 the delivery of the Project does not start within 2 months of the Commencement Date and the Recipient has failed to provide the Funder with a reasonable explanation for the delay;
 - 13.1.5 the Funder considers that the Recipient has not made satisfactory progress with the delivery of the Project;
 - 13.1.6 the Recipient is, in the reasonable opinion of the Funder, delivering the Project in a negligent manner;
 - 13.1.7 following a peer review of the Outcomes Summary (and, if Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles) applies, the Report and/ or the Results), the Funder is not satisfied that the Outcomes Summary and/ or the Report and/ or the Results has been produced in accordance with such quality standards, skill, diligence and best practice expected in the Recipient's field of work;
 - 13.1.8 the Recipient obtains duplicate funding from a third party for the Project;
 - 13.1.9 the Recipient obtains funding from a third party which, in the reasonable opinion of the Funder, undertakes activities that are likely to bring the reputation of the Project or the Funder into disrepute;
 - 13.1.10 the Recipient provides the Funder with any materially misleading or inaccurate information;

- 13.1.11 the Recipient commits or committed a Prohibited Act;
- 13.1.12 any member of the Governing Body or Related Person has (a) acted dishonestly or negligently at any time and directly or indirectly to the detriment of the Project; or (b) taken any actions which, in the reasonable opinion of the Funder, bring or are likely to bring the Funder's name or reputation into disrepute;
- 13.1.13 the Recipient ceases to operate for any reason, or it passes a resolution (or any court of competent jurisdiction makes an order) that it be wound up or dissolved (other than for the purpose of a bona fide and solvent reconstruction or amalgamation);
- 13.1.14 the Recipient becomes insolvent, or it is declared insolvent, or it is placed into receivership, administration or liquidation, or a petition has been presented for its winding up, or it enters into any arrangement or composition for the benefit of its creditors, or it is unable to pay its debts as they fall due; or
- 13.1.15 the Recipient fails to comply with any of the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement and fails to rectify any such failure within 30 days of receiving written notice detailing the failure.
- 13.2 The Funder may retain or set off any sums owed to it by the Recipient which have fallen due and payable against any sums due to the Recipient under this Agreement or any other agreement pursuant to which the Recipient provides goods or services to the Funder.
- 13.3 The Recipient shall make any payments due to the Funder on demand and without any deduction whether by way of set-off, counterclaim, discount, abatement or otherwise.
- 13.4 Should the Recipient be subject to financial or other difficulties which are capable of having a material impact on its effective delivery of the Project or compliance with this Agreement it will notify the Funder as soon as possible so that, if possible, and without creating any legal obligation, the Funder will have an opportunity to provide assistance in resolving the problem or to take action to protect the Funder and the Grant monies.

14. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

- 14.1 Nothing in this Agreement excludes or limits the liability of either party for any liability that cannot be excluded or limited by law.
- 14.2 The Funder accepts no liability for any consequences, whether direct or indirect, that may come about from the Recipient running the Project, the use of the Grant or from withdrawal of the Grant.
- 14.3 Subject to clause 14.1, the Funder's total liability under this Agreement is limited to the payment of the Grant.

Subject to clause 14.1, the Recipient's total liability to the Funder in respect of all losses arising under or in connection with the Agreement, whether in contract, tort (including negligence), breach of statutory duty, or otherwise, shall in no circumstances exceed a sum equal to two times the Grant paid or payable by the Funder to the Recipient.

Subject to clause 14.4, the Recipient shall indemnify and hold harmless the Funder, its employees, agents, officers or sub-contractors with respect to all claims, demands, actions, costs, expenses, losses, damages and all other liabilities arising from or incurred by reason of the actions and/or omissions of the Recipient (or of their respective employees, agents, officers or sub-contractors) in relation to the Project or the non-fulfilment of obligations of the Recipient under this Agreement.

15. WARRANTIES

- 15.1 The Recipient warrants, undertakes and agrees that:
- 15.1.1 it has full power and authority under its governing document, has taken all necessary action and has obtained all authorisations, licences, consents and approvals to execute and perform this Agreement;
- 15.1.2 it is a solvent entity capable of providing the Project in accordance with this Agreement;
- 15.1.3 where Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles) applies, in carrying out the Project it shall adhere to the:
 - (a) research ethics principles set out in Part 1 of Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles);
 - (b) Research Council's policy regarding data reuse;
 - (c) <u>data reuse principles set out in Part 2 of Schedule 1 (Research & Report Principles); and</u>
 - (d) it shall comply at all times with good practice in research ethics and follow the code of practice for their discipline. Where there is not a discipline specific code of practice, the Economic and Social Research Council framework for research ethics must be followed.
- 15.1.4 each of the Funder's personnel assigned to the Project has suitable experience and expertise to carry out their roles in the Project;
- 15.1.5 the project manager appointed to the Project has suitable experience and expertise to oversee and manage the relevant Project;
- 15.1.6 all information set out in the Programme of Work is to the best of its knowledge complete and accurate;
- 15.1.7 it has all necessary resources and expertise to deliver the Project;
- 15.1.8 it has not committed, nor shall it commit, any Prohibited Act;

15.1.9 it shall at all times comply with all relevant legislation and all applicable codes of practice (including but not limited to any applicable gambling or gaming legislation or regulations) and other similar codes or recommendations, and shall notify the Funder immediately of any significant departure from such legislation, codes or recommendations;

- 15.1.10 it shall comply with the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and any other acts, orders, regulations and codes of practice relating to health and safety, which may apply to employees and other persons working on the Project;
- 15.1.11 it shall comply with the Policies pursuant to clause 4.7.1 (as set out in the Appendix of Part 1 (Grant Bespoke Terms));
- 15.1.12 it shall comply with all reasonable directions and instructions provided to it [in writing] by the Funder, including, but not limited to, those directions and/ or instructions which derive from the Funder's status as a registered charity;
- 15.1.13 it has and shall keep in place adequate procedures for dealing with any conflicts of interest;
- 15.1.14 it has and shall keep in place systems to deal with the prevention of fraud and/or administrative malfunction;
- 15.1.15 all financial and other information concerning the Recipient which has been disclosed to the Funder is to the best of its knowledge and belief, true and accurate;
- 15.1.16 it is not subject to any contractual or other restriction imposed by its own or any other organisation's rules or regulations or otherwise which may prevent or materially impede it from meeting its obligations in connection with the Grant;
- 15.1.17 it is not aware of anything in its own affairs, which it has not disclosed to the Funder or any of the Funder's advisers, which might reasonably have influenced the decision of the Funder to make the Grant on the terms contained in this Agreement; and
- 15.1.18 since the date of its last accounts there has been no material change in its financial position or prospects.

16. **INSURANCE**

- The Recipient shall effect and maintain with a reputable insurance company a policy or policies in respect of all risks which may be incurred by the Recipient, arising out of the Recipient's performance of the Agreement, including death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property or any other loss.
- 16.2 The Recipient shall (on request) supply to the Funder a copy of such insurance policies and evidence that the relevant premiums have been paid.

17. **DURATION**

17.1 Except where otherwise specified, the terms of this Agreement shall apply from the date of this Agreement until the expiry of the Grant Period or for so long as any Grant monies remain unspent by the Recipient, whichever is longer.

- 17.2 Clauses 4 (Use of Grant), 7 (Acknowledgment of Publicity), 8 (Publication), 9 (Intellectual Property Rights), 10 (Confidentiality), 13 (Withholding, Suspending and Repayment of Grant), 14 (Limitation of Liability), 15 (Warranties), 17 (Duration), 18 (Dispute Resolution), 19 (Termination) and 21 (General) of this Agreement shall survive such expiry or termination and continue in full force and effect for a period of two (2) years from the later of expiry or termination whichever has caused the end of this Agreement, but only to the extent that such provisions relate to the Project.
- The Funder, at its sole discretion, may agree in writing to continue funding the Recipient beyond the Grant Period to undertake the Project for such further period as the Funder may agree in writing ("Extended Term"). The amount of any additional funding from the Funder in respect of the Extended Term shall be determined by the Funder in its discretion, and all other terms of this Agreement for the time being (as may have been amended during the course of the original term) shall apply to the Extended Term (with the Grant Period extended until the end of the Extended Term accordingly).
- 17.4 Any obligations under this Agreement that remain unfulfilled following the expiry or termination of the Agreement shall survive such expiry or termination and continue in full force and effect until they have been fulfilled.

18. **DISPUTE RESOLUTION**

- 18.1 In the event of any complaint or dispute arising between the parties in relation to this Agreement and without prejudice to the rights and remedies of the parties under clauses 13 (Withholding, Suspending and Repayment of Grant) and 21 (General), the parties shall follow the procedure set out in this clause:
 - (a) either party shall give to the other written notice of the Dispute, setting out its nature and full particulars ("**Dispute Notice**"), together with relevant supporting documents. On service of the Dispute Notice, the recipient of the Dispute Notice shall within 14 days give to the other a written proposal setting out how it will deal with the issues identified in the Dispute Notice and the timeframe in which it shall do so ("**Remedy Proposal**"); and
 - (b) a representative of each party shall meet within 7 working days of receipt of the Remedy Proposal and attempt in good faith to resolve the Dispute.

if the parties are for any reason unable to resolve the Dispute between them within 14 days of it being referred to them, the parties will attempt to settle it by mediation in accordance with the CEDR Model Mediation Procedure. Unless otherwise agreed between the parties, the mediator shall be nominated by CEDR. To initiate the mediation, a party must serve notice in writing (ADR notice) to the other party to the Dispute, requesting a mediation. A copy of the ADR notice should be sent to CEDR. The mediation will start not later than 30 days after the date of the ADR notice. Unless otherwise agreed, the parties shall bear the costs and expenses of the mediation equally.

19. **TERMINATION**

- 19.1 Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, either party may terminate this Agreement by giving [six (6)] months' written notice to the other party.
- 19.2 Without prejudice to clause 13 (Withholding, Suspending and Repayment of Grant), the Funder may terminate this Agreement and any unpaid Grant payments on giving the Recipient three months' written notice should it be required to do so by financial restraints or for any other reason.
- 19.3 Without prejudice to clause 13 (Withholding, Suspending and Repayment of Grant), the Funder may terminate this Agreement and any unpaid Grant payments immediately by written notice:
 - 19.3.1 the other party commits a material breach of this Agreement; or
 - 19.3.2 the other party commits a material breach of this Agreement which (in the case of a breach capable of a remedy) it does not remedy within 30 days of receiving written notice of the breach;
 - 19.3.3 if it becomes aware that the Recipient is conducting any other work (either independently or for a third party) which the Funder reasonably believes will negatively affect, conflict with or prejudice this Agreement or the objectives of the Project; and/or
 - 19.3.4 there is any interference from the gambling industry that seeks to undermine the independence and objectivity of the Project.
- 19.4 Within 5 days of expiry or the date of termination of this Agreement, the Recipient shall immediately and at its own expense, safely return to the Funder all property and information of the Funder then in its possession or control.
- 19.5 If this Agreement is terminated by the Funder under clause 19.1 (termination without cause) the Funder shall pay the Recipient for costs spent to the date of termination (and also for non-cancellable committed costs) provided that the Recipient promptly provides to the Funder valid copies of receipts for such costs (and other supporting documentation that the Funder may reasonably request):
- 19.6 Within five (5) days of expiry or the date of termination of this Agreement, the Recipient shall repay to the Funder any Grant monies it has received under this Agreement for work for which Grant monies has been received but not yet expended or irrevocably committed.

19.7 Termination shall be without prejudice to the accrued rights of either party at the termination date. Nothing in this clause 19 shall affect the coming into, or continuance in force of any provision of this Agreement which is expressly or by implication intended to come into force or continue in force upon expiry or termination of this Agreement.

- 19.8 The parties do not anticipate that the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)
 Regulations 2006 ("TUPE") shall apply to the expiry or termination of this Agreement because:
 - 19.8.1 the parties do not consider that this Agreement nor the carrying out of the Project under this Agreement will result in the formation of an organised grouping of resources, which has the objective of pursuing an economic activity and which will retain its identity; and
 - 19.8.2 at no time will an organised grouping of its employees have as its principal purpose the carrying out the Project under this Agreement,

and the Recipient warrants that it shall arrange its affairs in compliance with clause 19.5. The Recipient shall indemnify the Funder on demand against all liabilities, costs, expenses, damages and losses and all other reasonable professional costs and expenses suffered or incurred by the Funder in relation to or in consequence of any failure by the Recipient to comply with the provisions of this clause 19.8.

20. **FORCE MAJEURE**

- 20.1 If either party is unable to perform any obligation under this Agreement because of a matter beyond that party's reasonable control that arises from any of the following matters:
 - (a) strikes, lock-outs, labour or industrial disputes;
 - (b) acts of God;
 - (c) riot, civil commotion;
 - (d) malicious damage;
 - (e) compliance with any law or governmental order, rule, regulation or direction;
 - (f) accident;
 - (g) breakdown of plant or machinery;
 - (h) fire, flood or storm;
 - (i) outbreaks of a particular virus, disease or illness and/or the occurrence of an epidemic or pandemic;
 - (j) explosion;

- (k) war;
- (l) civil disorder;
- (m) actual or threatened terrorist attack; or
- (n) acts of local or central Government or other competent authorities (other than the Authority in its capacity as contracting party);
- (o) and in the event that the above events continue for a period of longer than three months that party will have no liability to the other party for that failure to perform and the party unable to perform shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement in accordance with the termination provisions provided herein.
- For the avoidance of doubt, where the Funder has insisted on the Project being undertaken where a Force Majeure event has occurred and where it is impracticable for the Recipient to continue with its obligations under this Agreement and where the Funder insists the Recipient must continue, any additional cost in carrying out the Funder's instruction shall be in addition to the funding provided for under this Agreement and charged as costed by the Recipient.

21. **GENERAL**

- The Recipient may not, without the prior written consent of the Funder, assign, transfer, sub-contract, or in any other way make over to any third party the benefit and/or the burden of this Agreement or, except as contemplated as part of the Project, transfer or pay to any other person any part of the Grant.
- 21.2 No failure or delay by either party to exercise any right or remedy under this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of any other right or remedy.
- 21.3 If a provision of the Agreement (or part of any provision) is found invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to amend such provision such that, as amended, it is legal, valid and enforceable, and, to the greatest extent possible, achieves the parties' original commercial intention.
- In the event that the parties cannot agree the amendment within 30 days of the date of commencing negotiation in accordance with clause 21.3, the provision shall to the extent of such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability, be deemed modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it valid, legal and enforceable. If such modification is not possible, the relevant provision shall be deemed severable and be deleted and shall not affect the other provisions of the Agreement, which shall continue unaffected.
- 21.5 The Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties relating to its subject matter and supersede and extinguishes all previous agreements, promises, assurances, warranties, representations and understandings between them, whether written or oral.

21.6 Each party agrees that it shall have no remedies in respect of any statement, representation, assurance or warranty (whether made innocently or negligently) that is not set out in the Agreement. Each party agrees that it shall have no claim for innocent or negligent misrepresentation or negligent misstatement based on any statement in the Agreement.

- All notices and other communications in relation to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered, or mailed (first class postage prepaid) to the address of the relevant party, as referred to above or otherwise notified in writing. If personally delivered all such communications shall be deemed to have been given when received (except that if received on a non-working day or after 5.00 pm on any working day they shall be deemed received on the next working day) and if mailed all such communications shall be deemed to have been given and received on the second working day following such mailing.
- 21.8 This Agreement shall not create any partnership or joint venture between the Funder and the Recipient, nor any relationship of principal and agent, nor authorise any party to make or enter into any commitments for or on behalf of the other party.
- 21.9 No variation of the Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the parties (or their authorised representatives).
- 21.10 This Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any contractual benefit on any person pursuant to the terms of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.
- 21.11 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall constitute a duplicate original, but all the counterparts shall together constitute the one agreement.
- 21.12 Transmission of an executed counterpart of this Agreement by (a) fax or (b) email (in PDF, JPEG or other agreed format) shall take effect as delivery of an executed counterpart of this Agreement. If either method of delivery is adopted, without prejudice to the validity of the agreement thus made, each party shall provide the others with the original of such counterpart as soon as reasonably possible thereafter.
- 21.13 No counterpart shall be effective until each party has executed and delivered at least one counterpart.
- 21.14 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England and Wales.
- 21.15 The parties irrevocably agree that the courts of England and Wales shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim that arises out of or in connection with this Agreement or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims).

AS WITNESS the signatures of the parties or their duly authorised representatives on the date first above written.

Invitation to Tender

Welsh Gambling Education Hub September 2021

About GambleAware:

GambleAware is an independent charity (Charity No. England & Wales 1093910, Scotland (SC049433) that champions a public health approach to preventing gambling harms. GambleAware is a commissioner of integrated prevention, education and treatment services on a national scale, with over £40 million of grant funding under active management.

For further information about the content of this document, please contact Zoe.Blood@gambleaware.org.